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CLAIRE C. McCASKILL 
Missouri State Auditor 

JoAnne Tietjens, Finance Director 
City of Arnold 
Jefferson County 
210 l J effco Boulevard 
Arnold, MO 63010 

March 9, 2006 

Fiscal Period: One Year Ended August 31 , 2005 

Dear Ms. Tietjens: 

/ 

In accordance with Section 105.145, RSMo, we acknowledge receipt of the financial 
report of your political subdivision for the above-described fiscal period. 

Thank you for your cooperation in sending this information. 

Sincerely, 

CLAIRE C. McCASKILL 
STATE AUDITOR 

~~ 
Judy Buerky 
Local Government Analyst 

P.O. Box 869 • Jefferson City, MO 65102 • (573) 751-42 13 • FAX (573) 751 -7984 



City of Arnold 

(Political Subdivsion Name) 

2101 Jeffco~mva. 

AmoJd Missonri 6301Q 

(Address) 

636 282-6661 

(Telephone Number) 

CERTIFICATION 

I JoAnne Tietjens 
(Name - please print) 

1)9-05(1-(H)(l 1 

Diane Walle,-, Ci t.v Clerk 

Citv of Arnold 
2101 Jeffco Boulevard 
Arno 1 d, MO 63010-1)000 

Finance Director of ___ -=c.c..:....;.......;_;_--=---=-----.c~:...;.:..;.:.---------

(Title) 

_ ...... c .... , ..... • t~y.__,_au...f-=Am.L.L.U.a..L.JJu...d.__ __________ of ___ .-1e_f~f~e_r~s~a~□-c~a~1-m~t....,y __ do attest, under oath, this 
(Political subdivision) (County) 

report is a true and accurate account of all financial transactions for the year ended __ "'2--~~' -'~4~\+--c--=~=------
(~~th, day~ year) 

Signature ~ ,. ~ , c \ \ • ;::\: 't >b--A 

Subscribed and sworn to before me this / tf.Jf, day of _---'-f -=ch---~-,u_ a_ r,--+l/' _______ , 20 O{p . 
.._J 

(Notary seal) 

Financial Statement Summary 

For the Year Ended s 13112005 

Beginning Balance 
Total Receipts 
Total Disbursements 

Ending Balance 

Total All 
Funds 

$ 32 I 15] ]70 
20 ,128.510 

31 ,879,522 

$ 20 I 400 I 158 

$ 

$ 

My Commission Expires: ___ 3_0-_ rr._./_o~9.__ _____ _ 

General Rec Center Sewer 
Fund Fund Fund Fund 

]8 208 602 $ $ l,J,!;!4~,39g $ 

lf:i,QBf:i,824 2 68Q 506 ] 
I 36J I J 80 

29 1 418 I 844 972, fP1 J ,480 804 

4 ,!376 I 582 $ :zao 632 $ ] 3 822 9~~ 
$ 
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Receipts 

Total All 
Funds 

Property Tax 

EeaJ $ 863,00:Z 

Total CTQ.U 863,007 

Sales Tax 
Jeff Co.CIP 1,363,528 

5,225,714 
249,474 

Sales Tax 
Shared Vehicle 
Tourism 

Total 

Franchise Tax 

Pbaoe 

Gas 
Electric 

Total 

156,298 

™ 6,995,014 

333,511 
422,:Z66 

1,081,030 

(Iill 1. 83:Z • 307 

Intergovernmental Receipts 

Federal Grants 3,453.622 

state Grants 

Total 

Charges for Services 

MISC 

Total 

Utility Receipts 

Sewer 

Total 

Interest Earned 

20 I 5:Z4 

3.474.196 

203 .181 

203,181 

J 153 188 

1. 153,168 

MID 490.710 

Other Receipts and Transfers 

Lease Proceeds 400 000 j 

MISC 3 1 J 5 :Z02 
Interfund Transfers 1,596,205 
Total 5,Ul,9Q:Z 

Total Receipts $20,128,510 

General 
Fund 

$ 863 ,Q07 

863,007 

1,363,528 
4 204 968 

249,474 
156,298 

5,974 ,2@ 

333,511 
422,766 

1,081,030 

l. 837 I 30:Z 

4,453,622 

20 I 5:Z4 

3 474 196 

199,338 

199,338 

331, 794 

400 000 
3 006, 914 

3,406,914 
$16,086,824 
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$ 

$ 

Rec Center Sewer 
Fund Fund Fund 

$ $ 

J 020 746 

l.020,:Z46 

3.843 

3 843 

]53,188 

1.153 I 188 

56.058 102.858 

3 654 ]05 J 34 

J ,596,205 
1,599,859 105 I 134 
2,680,506 $ 1,361,180 $ 



Disbursements (By Function) 

Total All General ' Bee Ceotei: Se1~e;r: 

Funds Fund Fund Fund Fund 

General Government wm $ ] :Z 94 :Z40 $ ] :Z94 :Z40 $ $ $ 

Police (fill 4,446 , 103 4,446,103 

Fire Wlll 

Streets and Roads ~ 850 ] 4] 850 ]4] 

Sanitation {fil.l1 

Health and Welfare (EW BBQ, 191 BBQ l 91 ; 

Parks (fill 736 , 595 638,613 97,982 

Libraries (fill.} 

Debt Payments 2 , 226,162 1 , 249,745 881,892 94,525 

Publ.;i.!:,;; NQrls;i;i 5 , 848 , 333 5 , 848 , 333 

CapHaJ Oll:t] a~ 12 , 111 , 773 12 , 114 I 773 

Se1oie:t: 1 , 386 , 279 1,386 , 279 

Interfund Transfers 1 , 596 , 205 1,596,205 
Total Disbursements 

by Function $ Jt , 879 .522 $ 29 ,418 , 844 $ 979 874 $ 1, 480,804 $ 

Disbursements (By Object) 

Total All General Rec Center Sewer 
Funds Fund Fund Fund Fund 

Salaries !ZllQJ $ 4 • 829 I 105 $ 4 , 595 , 532 $ 16,210 $ 217 , 363 $ 

Fringe Benefits 1 , 701 , 646 1 , 605,735 3,625 92,286 
Operations 9 , 4]] 63] 8 256,854 :Z6,J4:Z J ,Q:Z6,63Q 
Debt Payments 2 , 226 , 162 1 , 249,745 881 ,892 94 525 
Capital Expenditures CYW 12 , lH , 7. 73 12 , 114 , 773 

Interfund Transfers 1, 596 , 205 1 , 596 , 205 
Total Disbursements 

by Object $ 31, 87.9 , 522 $ 29 .418 , 844 $ 979,874 $ 1.480 I 804 $ 
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Statement of Indebtedness 

Outstanding 
Beginning 

Issue Description of Fiscal Year 

General Obligation Bonds Lim @X} 

. Issue9 
During 

Fiscal Year 

Retired 
During 

Fiscal Year 

Outstanding 
End 

of Fiscal Year 

llliQ 

__________ $ _______ $ ______ $ ______ $ ______ _ 

Revenue Bonds Ll.2Xl 

SRF Bonds 1 .4 10. 275 
Leasehold Rev Bonds 835, 000 

Leasehold Rey Bonds 1s.s20 . ooo 
Certificate of Participation 

Other Debt 650 , 000 

Lease Purchase 
Notes Payable 875 ,700 

Totals $ 19.590.975 

Ll.2Xl 

400 000 

124 500 
835,000 
210 , 000 

210,000 

47 450 
71,000 

$ 400 , 000 $1, 497 . 950 
============= 

Statement of Assessed Valuation and Tax Rates 

Assessed Valuation 

Real Estate 
Personal Property 
State Assessed Railroad and Utility 

Total Valuation 

Tax Rates 

Funds 

See Attacbed 

$ 210. 554 . 074 
72 , 094 , 599 

6 ,744 , 080 
$ 289 , 392 , 753 

Tax Rate 
(per $100) 

-4-

1. 285 , 775 
-0-

15 , 610 , 000 

440,000 

352 , 550 
804,700 

$ 18 , 493 , 025 



CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
PROPERTY TAX RATES-DIRECT AND ALL OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTS 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

2002 2003 2004 2005 
City of Arnold 0.4511 0.4516 0.4516 0.4379 

Overlapping governments: 
State of Missouri 0.0300 0.0300 0.0300 0.0300 
Jefferson County 0.5063 0.5167 0.5236 0:4999 
Consolidated School No. 6 

of Jefferson County 3.5094 3.5293 4.6000 4.4622 
Rock Community Fire Protection District 0.9439 0.9639 0.9739 0.9395 
Rock Township Ambulance District 0.2246 0.2244 0.2244 0.1454 
The Junior College District 

of Jefferson County 0.3483 0.3483 0.3483 0.3483 
The Jefferson County Library District 0.1789 

. 
0.1855 0.1855 0.1855 

Surtax-Commercial Only 0.2400 0.2400 0.2400 
Total Overlapping Governments 5.7480 6.0381 7.1257 6.8442 • 

Total City & Overlapping Governments 6.1991 6.4897 7.5773 7.2821 





CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report 
For The Fiscal Year Ended August 31, 2001 

Prepared by the Finance Department 
JoAnne Tietjens, Finance Director 
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City of .'A.rno{d 

November 9, 2001 

To the Honorable Mayor and City Council, and 
The Citizens of Arnold, Missouri 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

Mark Powell, Mayor 

The comprehensive annual financial report of the City of Arnold, Missouri (the City) for the fiscal year ended 
August 31, 2001 , is hereby submitted. Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data, and the completeness 
and fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the City. To the best of my knowledge and 
belief, the enclosed data is accurate in all material respects and is reported in a manner designed to present fairly 
the financial position and results of operations of the various funds and account groups of the City. All 
disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding of the City's financial activities have been 
included. 

The comprehensive annual financial report is presented in four sections: introductory, financial, statistical and 
single audit. The introductory section includes this transmittal letter, the City's organizational chart and a list of 
principal officials. The financial section includes the general purpose financial statements, the individual fund 
and account group financial statements and schedules, as well as the auditors' report on the financial statements 
and schedules. The statistical section includes selected financial and demographic information, generally 
presented on a multi-year basis. • 

The City is required to undergo a single audit in conformance with the provisions of the Single Audit Act and 
U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133. Information related to this single audit, including the 
schedule offederal awards and auditors ' reports on the internal control and compliance with applicable laws and 
regulations, are included in the single audit section of this report. 

This report includes all funds and account groups of the City. The City provides a full range of services 
including police protection; health and sanitation services; construction and maintenance of streets and 
infrastructure; parks and recreation services; city planning and building inspection; and administration. In 
addition to general government activities, the City's Sewer System and Police Pension Plan activities are 
included in the reporting entity. 

ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK 

The City is centrally located on the eastern border of the State of Missouri, south of the Meramec River at its 
confluence with the Mississippi River. The central business district of the City of St. Louis is about 17 miles to 
the north. Interstate Highway 55, U.S. Highway 61-67, State Highways 141 and 231 provide access to St. Louis 
City and St. Louis County. 

City Hall 
2101 Jeffco Blvd. 
Arnold, MO 63010 

636/296-2100 

Parks and Recreation 
1838 Old Lemay Ferry Rd. 

Arnold, MO 63010 
636/282-2380 

Public Works 
2912 Arnold Tenbrook 

Arnold, MO 63010 
636/282-2386 



The economic condition and outlook of the City of Arnold have been stable in recent years. Several large 
retailers and food stores form a retail nucleus that buffers the local economy due to the basic necessity of goods 
sold. During fiscal year 2001 , the new businesses opened included a Target on Vogel Road. The City's housing 
stock, geographic location and variety of services have kept real estate marketable. Commercial vacancies 
remain modest while the potential for further retail and industrial development appears favorable within the next 
five years. 

The citizens of Arnold secure employment with business and industry throughout the St. Louis metropolitan 
area. Employment levels in the metropolitan St. Louis area have been and are expected to remain relatively 
stable due to the variety of business and industry. 

The City's tax structure relies primarily on sales taxes and utility taxes. Sales tax receipts are expected to 
maintain steady growth at a pace greater than the rate of inflation. Utility tax receipts are likely to increase at a 
modest rate. Significant reductions are not expected from either source in the upcoming five years. The City has 
demonstrated its ability to compress government expenditures in the past to accommodate a tight economy or 
temporary downturn in revenue. It is anticipated this trait will continue. 

MAJOR INITIATIVES 

The City Council and administrative staff regularly develop and update plans designed to improve the quality of 
community life while maintaining the financial stability of the City. Major activities during 2001 include the 
following: 

Several major road improvement projects are progressing through engineering design and right-of-way 
acquisition. Construction of some of these projects will begin in 2002. 

A major stormwater project involving buyout.and demolition of flood damaged structures is underway along 
Melody Lane and Keywest with the help of funding from two Department of Natural Resources grants. When 
completed, the land will remain as open space. The buyout program continues to reduce the risk of flood related 
property damage within the City. 

The City refinanced its Municipal Complex during fiscal year 2001 . The refinancing secured lower interest rates 
and will save the City approximately $95,000 in interest expense during the remaining five years of the debt 
service. 

People are Arnold's greatest asset, and the neighborhoods in which they reside are one of the more important 
responsibilities of government. The provision of quality basic services of police, fire, road maintenance, parks, 
and solid waste collection are critical for their continued desirability. These programs help assure the 
preservation of the City's neighborhoods. 

FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

The City maintains its general accounting records on a modified accrual basis. Under the modified accrual basis 
of accounting, revenues are recognized when they become both measurable and available. "Measurable" means 
the amount of the transaction can be determined and "available" means collectible within the current period or 
soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current period. Significant revenues which are 
considered susceptible to accrual include sales taxes, utility gross receipts taxes and certain intergovernmental 
revenues. Expenditures are recorded when th~ liability is incurred. 
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Internal Control 

Management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal controls designed to ensure 
the assets of the City are protected from loss, theft or misuse and to ensure that adequate accounting data are 
compiled to allow for the preparation of general purpose financial statements in conformity with generally 
accepted accounting principles. The internal controls are designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, 
assurance these objectives are met. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that: ( 1) the cost of a 
control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived; and (2) the valuation of costs and benefits requires 
estimates and judgments by management. 

Budgeting Controls 

Missouri State law and City ordinances require annual budgets to be prepared for the general and special revenue 
funds. The City maintains budgetary controls. The objective of these budgetary controls is to ensure compliance 
with legal provisions embodied in the annual budget approved by the City Council. Activities of the General 
Fund are included in the annual budget. 

As demonstrated by the statements and schedules included in the financial section of this report, the City 
continues to meet its responsibility for sound financial management. 

General Government Functions 

. The following schedule presents a summary of general fund revenues for the fiscal year ended August 31, 2001 
and the amount and percentage of increases in relation to prior year' s revenues. 

Increase Percent 
Percent (Decrease) oflncrease 

Revenues Amount of Total from2000 (Decrease) 

Taxes $9,215,079 73.09% 1,984,717 27.45% 
Special Assessments 428,554 3.40 (93 ,396) (17.89) 
Licenses and permits 363,020 2.88 (41,713) (10.31) 
Fines and Court costs 568,284 4.51 165,115 40.95 
Intergovernmental 686,857 5.45 443,695 182.47 
Charges for services 630,742 5.00 127,396 25.31 
Investment income 456,150 3.62 (10,112) (2.17) 
Miscellaneous 258,483 2.05 61,509 31.23 

Total $12,607,169 100.00% 2,637,211 26.45% 

The largest share of general revenue is provided by the City's one-cent sales tax with fiscal year 2001 collections 
totaling $4,004,997. Fiscal year 2000 collections totaled $3,344,547. Fiscal 2001 collections exceeded the prior 
year by $660,450, a 19.75% increase. The increase results from annexation of new retail development. 

A voter approved 1/4 cent sales tax for local parks went into effect January I, 1998. Revenues generated by this 
tax are used to retire leasehold revenue bonds issued for the purchase of 120 acres of park land with a purchase 
price of$3,210,000. Fiscal 2001 collections total $970,185, an increase of 19.66%, or $159,410 over fiscal 
2000. This sales tax will expire March 31, 2002. 

iii 



The City receives capital improvements sales tax as shared by Jefferson County per contractual agreement. The 
monies received from this source are on a reimbursement basis for qualifying capital improvement expenditures. 
Capital improvement sales tax received in fiscal 2001 totaled $762,733. In the prior fiscal year, no capital 
improvements sales taxes were received. 

Collections from the gross receipts tax on utilities increased $354,281 or 23.41%, to $1,867,444. The sharp 
increase was due to the rise in gas prices over the winter. The prices have since decreased although not down to 
previous rates. 

Special assessment collections can fluctuate significantly from year to year. Collections of special assessments 
represent repayments for improvements within sanitary sewer subdistricts and neighborhood improvement 
districts. 

License and permit revenue decreased $4 l, 7 l 4 or l 0.31 % to $363,020 reflecting a slowdown in new 
construction. This follows a 7.45% decrease the previous year. 

Fines and court costs rose $165,115 or 40.95% to $568,284 during the year due to more aggressive judgments 
in municipal court. 

The majority of intergovernmental revenue consists of $350,859 in receipts from the Department of Natural 
Resources as partial funding for the storm water buyout and demolition project, $ l 3 l ,564 in receipts from the 
U.S. Department of Transportation (STP) as partial funding for various projects underway and $82,179 from the 
U.S. Department of Justice as funding for community oriented policing services. 

City charges for services increased in fiscal 200 l and are comprised mainly of fees for trash collection. Net 
losses of $302,843 on gross revenue of $530,817 were realized during the fiscal year for trash collection. Solid 
waste collection in the City is provided under a contract with a qualified waste hauler. 

Investment income remained stable during the year. 

The following schedule presents a summary of general fund expenditures for the fiscal year ended August 31, 
2001 and the percentage increases and decreases in relation to prior year amounts. 

Increase Percent 
Percent (Decrease) of Increase 

Expenditures Amount of Total from 2000 (Decrease) 

General Government $2,274,054 18.40% 144,115 6.77% 
Public Safety 3,901,286 31.57 428,782 12.35 
Public Works 270,582 2.19 7,958 3.03 
Highways and Streets 3,661,223 29.63 2,674,127 270.91 
Parks and Recreation 521,361 4.22 28,688 5.82 
Health and Sanitation 1,023,861 8.28 215,059 26.59 
Capital Outlay 706,149 5.71 199,876 39.48 

Total $ l 2,358,5 l 6 100.00% 3,698,605 42.71% 
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Expenditures in the General Government category increased significantly in only one area. There was an 
increase of $107,635 in personnel costs as the new pay scale took effect in fiscal 2001 . 

Personnel spending for Public Safety increased by approximately $400,000, as the Police Department reached 
full employment, and the new pay scale took effect. 

Public Works Department expenditures remained nearly stable. 

Street Department expenditures increased due to several factors, One factor was the Key West/Melody Lane 
buyout project, which totaled $921 ,971. Another factor was an increase of $803,449 in road construction 
projects. The City spent $1,008,490 for road maintenance in fiscal 200 I, an increase of $711 ,221 or 239%. 
Personnel costs increased $90,290. 

Expenditures for Health and Sanitation increased with the increased costs for contracted solid waste collection of 
$207,044. 

Genera) Fund Balance 

The fund balance of the General Fund increased $287,465 during the year to a balance of $6,625,535 at 
August 31 , 2001. This increase reflects revenues in excess of expend itures. 

Enterprise Operations 

The City's enterprise operation is comprised of the sanitary sewer system. Providing sanitary sewer services 
throughout the City has been a major priority since the City's inception. Construction of sewer subdistricts for 
existing housing subdivisions and requiring developers to construct sewers for new developments has rapidly 
added new connections to the system. 

The system continues to have net losses after depreciation, however, cash flow has been positive and the regular 
addition of customers serves to reduce these annual losses. 

Single Audit 

As a recipient of Federal financial assistance, the City is responsible for maintaining an adequate internal control 
structure to ensure compliance with applicable laws and regulations related to those programs. As part of the 
City's single audit, tests are performed to determine the adequacy of internal controls including the portion 
related to federal financial assistance programs. The results of the City's single audit for the fiscal year ended 
August 31 , 200 I found no instances of material weaknesses in the internal controls. 

Pension Trust Fund Operations 

The operations of the City of Arnold Police Pension Plan remained stable during fiscal 200 I. The annual 
actuarial valuation continues to reflect a positive trend in the City's and employee's funding of the Police Pension 
Plan. 
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Debt Administration 

At August 31 , 200 I, the City had three major debt issues outstanding. These issues are $1 ,260,00 of certificates 
of participation (municipal complex), $2,335,000 of leasehold revenue bonds (park land acquisition) and 
$2,154,525 of sewer revenue bonds. The City refinanced its Municipal Complex during fiscal 200 I in order to 
secure a lower interest rate and save the City approximately $95,000 in interest during the remaining five years 
of the debt service. 

The City has no general obligation bonded de_bt. Under current Missouri statutes, the City's legal general 
obligation debt limit, based on 10% of the City's total assessed valuation ofreal and personal property is 
$22,021 ,812. 

Cash Management 

Cash temporarily idle during the year was invested in repurchase agreements, U.S. Treasury and U.S. Agency 
Securities. Interest earned on repurchase agreements and certificates of deposit totaled $673,137 for all funds for 
the year. The pension trust fund is invested in New England Financial. Earnings for the Pension Fund totaled 
$137,129 for the year. 

The City's investment policy is to minimize c;redit and market risks while maintaining a competitive yield on its 
portfolio. Accordingly, deposits were either insured by federal depository insurance or collateralized. All 
collateral on deposits was held by a financial institution's trust department in the City's name. 

Risk Management 

The City of Arnold has been a member of Missouri Intergovernmental Risk Management Association (MIRMA) 
since July 1, 1983. MIRMA is a state wide governmental self-insurance pool providing property, liability, and 
workers' compensation coverages to its members. The financial condition ofMIRMA is excellent. MIRMA has 
been able to significantly increase its self-insurance capacity and services, thereby providing its membership 
superior coverage and cost savings. 

The City, assisted by MIRMA, seeks to provide supervisory and employee training, and identification of 
hazardous conditions or procedures in an effort to reduce or eliminate personal injuries and property damage. 

OTHER INFORMATION 

Independent Audit 

Missouri statutes require an annual audit by independent certified public accountants. The certified public 
accounting firm of Hochschild, Bloom & Company LLP, was selected by the City Council to perform this year's 
audit. The auditors' report on the general purpose financial statements and individual fund statements and 
schedules is included in the financial section of this report. 

Award 

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of 
Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City of Arnold for its comprehensive annual financial 
report for the fiscal year ended August 31, 2000. The Certificate of Achievement is a prestigious national award, 
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recognizing confonnance with the highest standards for preparation of state and local government financial 
reports. 

In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, the City must publish an easily readable and efficiently 
organized comprehensive annual financial report, whose contents conform to program standards. Such 
comprehensive annual financial report must satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable 
legal requirements. 

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. The City of Arnold has received a 
Certificate of Achievement for the last twelve consecutive fiscal years ended 1989 to 2000. We believe our 
current report continues to conform to the Certificate of Achievement program requirements, and we are 
submitting it to the GFOA. 

Acknowledgements 

The preparation of the comprehensive annual financial report was made possible by the cooperation of the entire 
administrative staff of the various departments of the City. I would also like to acknowledge the assistance of 
our accountants, Hochschild, Bloom & Company LLP, in formulating this report. 

In closing, without the support of the Mayor and Council, preparation of this report would not have been 
possible. 

Respectfully submitted, 

City Administrator 
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Certificate of 
Achievement 
for Excellence 

in Financial 
Reporting 

Presented to 

City of Arnold, 
Missouri 

For its Comprehensive Annual 
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October 18, 200 I 

Hochschild, Bloom & Company LLP 
Certified Public Accountants 
Consultants and Advisors 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

Honorable Mayor and City Council 
CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 

We have audited the accompanying general purpose financial statements of the CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
(the City) as of and for the year ended August 31, 2001 , as listed in the table of contents. These general purpose 
financial statements are the responsibility of the City' s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on 
these general purpose financial statements based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with U.S . generally accepted auditing standards and the standards applicable 
to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards , issued by the Comptroller General of the United 
States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
the general purpose financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test 
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the general purpose financial statements. An audit also 
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evalu­
ating the overall general purpose financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable 
basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the general purpose financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of the City as of August 31, 2001 , and the results of its operations and the cash flows of its pro­
prietary fund type for the year then ended in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated October 18, 2001 on our 
consideration of the City's internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain pro­
visions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accor­
dance with Government Auditing Standards and should be read in conjunction with this report in considering the 
results of our audit. 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the general purpose financial statements taken as 
a whole. The supplemental information as listed in the table of contents is presented for purposes of additional 
analysis and is not a required part of the general purpose financial statements of the City. Such information has 
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the general purpose financial statements and, in our 
opinion, is fairly presented in all material respects in relation to the general purpose financial statements taken as a 
whole. 

We did not audit the statistical data included in the statistical section of this report and, therefore, express no opin­
ion thereon. 

t-/cc.~ /3J~ fL,.~ LLf 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC,ACCOUNTANTS \j 

D 16100 Chesterfield Parkway West, Suite 125, Chesterfield, Missouri 63017-4829, 636-532-9525, Fax 636-532-9055 
D 1000 Washington Square, P.O. Box 1457, Washington, Missouri 63090-8457, 636-239-4785, Fax 636-239-5448 

EE Member. Independent Accountants International with Member Offices in Principal U.S. and International Cities. 



CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
COMBINED BALANCE SHEET - ALL FUND TYPES AND ACCOUNT GROUPS 

AUGUST 31, 2001 
WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR AUGUST 31, 2000 

Governmental Proprietary Fiduciary 
Fund Type Fund Type Fund Type Account Groups 

General General Totals 
Fixed Long-Term (Memorandum Only) 

General Enterprise Trust Assets Debt 2001 2000 

ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITS 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,634,481 112,919 1,747,400 1,868,534 
Investments 3,747,979 1,891,122 5,639,101 5,960,362 
Deposit administration contracts 3,893,953 3,893,953 2,968,235 
Receivables (net of allowances for uncollectibles): 

Taxes 1,644,403 1,644,403 802,564 
Special assessments 2,272,958 2,272,958 2,549,982 
Sewer service fees 32,760 32,760 26,951 
Intergovernmental 495,994 495,994 144,201 
Miscellaneous 462,988 462,988 68,803 

Due from other funds 85,722 38,349 124,071 633,497 
Prepaid items 325,424 26,341 351,765 199,161 
Restricted assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents 54,259 1,166,738 1,220,997 1,615,851 
Capital improvements sales tax receivable 2,538,070 2,538,070 2,392,081 
Investments 605,775 309,608 915,383 926,734 

Property, plant and equipment: 
Land, buildings and improvements 2,313,448 15,896,111 18,209,559 16,488,867 
Machinery and equipment 478,246 1,644,241 2,122,487 1,965,263 
Automotive equipment 1,022,412 1,022,412 1,019,040 
Furniture and fixtures 202,752 202,752 192,721 
Sewer lines 17,499,884 17,499,884 17,499,884 
Construction-in-process 51 ,870 51 ,870 38,623 
Less • Accumulated depreciation (6,345,510) (6,345,510) (5,915 ,482) 

Other debits: 
Amount available for debt service 1,818,675 1,818,675 1,350,713 
Amount to be provided for retirement of general long-term debt 1,814,292 1,814,292 2,830,759 

Total Assets And Other Debits $13,868,053 17,537,426 3,932,302 18,765,516 3,632,967 57,736,264 55,627,344 

(Continued) 
See notes to financial statements _________________________________________________ _ 
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LIABILITIES, FUND EQUITY AND OTHER CREDITS 

Liabilities 
Accounts payable 
Accrued payroll and compensated absences payable 
Accrued post-employment benefits 
Due to other funds 
Accrued interest payable 
Deferred revenues 
Pension contribution payable 
Notes payable 
Revenue bonds payable, net of bond discounts 
Capital leases payable 

Total Liabilities 

Fund Equity and Other Credits 
Investment in general fixed assets 
Contributed capital 
Retained earnings ( deficit): 

Reserved in accordance with revenue bond agreements 
Unreserved 

Fund balances: 
Reserved for prepaid items 
Reserved for encumbrances 
Reserved for escrow deposit 
Reserved for bond reserve 
Reserved for debt service reserve 
Reserved for employee retirement benefits 
Unreserved: 

Designated for sewer subdistrict projects 
Designated for street projects 
Designated for strategic planning 
Designated for road reconstruction 
Designated for neighborhood improvement projects 
Designated for stormwater projects 
Designated for annexation 
Designated for technology acquisitions 
Designated for mayor/council prerogatives 
Undesignated 

Total Fund Equity And Other Credits 

Total Liabilities, Fund Equity And Other Credits 

CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
COMBINED BALANCE SHEET - ALL FUND TYPES AND ACCOUNT GROUPS (Continued) 

AUGUST 31, 2001 
WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR AUGUST 31, 2000 

Governmental Proprietary Fiduciary 
Fund Type Fund Type Fund Type Account Groups 

General General Totals 
Fixed Long-Term (Memorandum Only) 

General Enterprise Trust Assets Debt 2001 2000 

$ 1,286,538 74,606 1,361,144 994,034 
679,684 19,205 698,889 630,634 

8,573 8,573 10,902 
38,349 85,722 124,071 633,497 

7,764 7,764 48,550 
5,221,610 89,867 5,311,477 5,071,790 

37,967 37,967 91 ,644 
1,065,700 1,065,700 1,009,356 
2,122,211 2,122,211 2,352,121 

3,595,000 3,595,000 4,089,828 

7,242,518 3,457,311 3,632,967 14,332,796 14,932,356 

18,765,516 18,765,516 16,913 ,353 
17,642,216 17,642,216 17,628,969 

290,000 290,000 290,000 
(3,852,101) (3,852,101) (3,785,487) 

325,424 325,424 199,161 
580,400 580,400 981,794 
126,000 126,000 200,000 
479,775 479,775 422,852 

1,212,900 1,212,900 727 ,861 
3,932,302 3,932,302 3,310,083 

870,932 870,932 509,537 
266,740 266,740 68,473 

20,000 
550,000 550,000 250,000 
611 ,978 611 ,978 613 ,382 
287,463 287,463 900,734 

10,000 
52,533 52,533 
56,805 56,805 

1,204,585 1,204,585 1,434,276 
6,625 ,535 14,080,115 3,932,302 18,765,516 43 ,403 ,468 40,694,988 

$13,868,053 17,537,426 3,932,302 18,765,516 3,632,967 57,736,264 55 ,627 ,344 

See notes to financial statements _________________________________________________ _ 
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND 

BALANCES-GOVERNMENTALFUNDTYPE-GENERALFUND 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2001 -

WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2000 --------

REVENUES 

Special assessments 

Investment mcome 
Nliscel 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 

rnment 

d streets 
--;=~- c~t1on 

anitation 

D.enl issuance costs 

'Rotal Expenditures 

REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Proceeds from certificates of participation 
Payment to escrow agent 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 

REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 
OVER EXPENDITURES AND OTHER (USES) 

FUND BALANCES, SEPTEMBER I 

FUND BALANCES, AUGUST 31 

See notes to financial statements 

$ 

2001 

O'Z 
428 554 

456,150 
'.[5~~83 

~~~4 
2.:02,036 

,812 
1~358,S16 

248,653 

1,260,000 
(1,221,188) 

38,812 

287,465 

6,338,070 

$ 6,625,535 

2000 

7,230,362 
521,950 
404,733 
403,169 
243,162 
503,346 
466,262 
196,974 

9,969,958 

1,300,610 
3,472,504 

262,624 
987,096 
492,673 
808,802 
506,273 

553,962 
275,367 

8,659,911 

1,310,047 

1,310,047 

5,028,023 

6,338,070 

- ------ ------------------- -
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES 

IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL -
GOVERNMENTALFUNDTYPE-GENERALFUND 

__________________ FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2001 

REVENUES 
Taxes 
Special assessments 
Licenses and permits 
Fines and court costs 
Intergovernmental 
Charges for services 
Investment income 
Miscellaneous 

Total Revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 

General ·government 
Public safety 
Public works 
Highways and streets 
Parks and recreation 
Health and sanitation 

Capital outlay 

Total Expenditures 

REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Proceeds from certificates of participation 
Payment to escrow agent 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 

REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES AND OTHER (USES) 

FUND BALANCES, SEPTEMBER I 

FUND BALANCES, AUGUST 31 

Budget 

$ 8,999,340 
325,000 
433,450 
385,000 

1,684,810 
605,800 
310,000 
289,400 

13,032,800 

2,238,196 
3,908,499 

288,207 
5,196,762 

578,914 
1,053,629 

767,830 

14,032,037 

(999,237) 

$ (999,237) 

Over 
(Under) 

Actual Budget 

9,215,079 215,739 
428,554 103,554 
363,020 (70,430) 
568,284 183,284 
686,857 (997,953) 
630,742 24,942 
456,150 . 146,150 
258,483 (30,917) 

12,607,169 (425,631) 

2,274,054 35,858 
3,901,286 (7,213) 

270,582 (17,625) 
3,661,223 (1,535,539) 

521 ,361 (57,553) 
1,023,861 (29,768) 

706,149 (61 ,681) 

12,358,516 (1,673,521) 

248,653 1,247,890 

1,260,000 1,260,000 
(1,221,188) (1,221,188) -

38,812 38,812 

287,465 1,286,702 

6,338,070 

$6,625,535 

See notes to financial statements _________________________ _ 
Pages 



CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN 

DEFICIT- PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE - ENTERPRISE FUND 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2001 

_______ WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2000 

2001 2000 

OPERATING REVENUES 
Sewer service fees $ 1,072,312 1,064,603 
Sewer connection fees 14,400 16,933 

Total Operating Revenues 1,086,712 1,081,536 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Cost of services 654,749 694,523 
Administration 126,000 120,000 
Depreciation and amortization 450,133 445,101 

Total Operating Expenses 1,230,882 1,259,624 

OPERATING LOSS (144,170) (178,088) 

NONOPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSE) 
Investment income 216,987 180,521 
Gain on sale 2,500 
Miscellaneous income 1,314 
Interest expense (143,245) (147,581) 

Total Nonoperating Revenue (Expense) 77,556 32,940 

NET LOSS (66,614) (145,148) 

DEFICIT, SEPTEMBER 1 (3,495,487) (3,350,339) 

DEFICIT, AUGUST 31 ($3,562,101) (3,495,487) 

See notes to financial statements ----------------- ----------
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS-PROPRIETARY 

FUND TYPE-ENTERPRISE FUND 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2001 

_______ WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2000 

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 
Cash flows from operating activities: 

Operating loss 
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash provided 

by operating activities: 
Depreciation and amortization 
Gain on sale 
(Increase) decrease in: 

Receivables 
Prepaid items 

Increase (decrease) in: 
Accounts payable 
Accrued payroll and compensated absences payable 
Deferred revenues 

Total Adjustments 
Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities 

Cash flows provided by (used in) noncapital financing activities: 
Due to (from) other funds 

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities: 
Principal paid on revenue bonds payable 
Interest paid on revenue bonds payable 
Payments for capital acquisitions 
Proceeds from sale of capital disposals 
Proceeds from notes payable 

Net Cash Provided By (Used In) Capital And 
Related Financing Activities 

Cash flows from investing activities: 
Proceeds from sale of investments 
Purchases of investments 
Other income 
Investment income received on investments 

Net Cash Used In Investing Activities 

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, SEPTEMBER 1 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, AUGUST 31 

Noncash operating, financing and investing activities: 
Contributed capital 

$ 

$ 

2001 2000 

($144,170) (178,088) 

450,133 445,101 
(2,500) 

(5,809) (451) 
(26,341) 

(129,367) 147,880 
2,644 (1,921) 
3,505 I , I I 6 

292,265 591,725 
148,095 413,637 

377,371 (421,327) 

(235,975) (150,750) 
(143,245) (147,581) 
(60,696) (125,197) 
10,000 
56,344 427,413 

(373,572) 3,885 

6,723,751 3,883,975 
(7,825,194) (4,416,157) 

3,814 
215,264 172,908 

(882,365) (359,274) 

(730,471) (363,079) 

2,010,128 2,373,207 

1,279,657 2,010,128 

13,247 178,727 

See notes to financial statements ___________________________ _ 
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI • 
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN PLAN NET ASSETS -

FIDUCIARY FUND TYPE - PENSION TRUST FUND 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2001 • 

------'-__ WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2000 

2001 2000 

ADDITIONS 
Employer contributions $ 349,958 299,407 
Employee contributions 156,561 133,963 
Investment income 137,130 413,516 

Total Additions 643,649 846,886 .... 

DEDUCTIONS 
Benefits 6,378 6,378 
Return of contributions 15,052 55,690 

Total Deductions 21 ,430 62,068 

NET INCREASE 622,219 784,818 

NET ASSETS HELD IN TRUST FOR PENSION 
BENEFITS, SEPTEMBER I 3,310,083 2,525,265 

NET ASSETS HELD IN TRUST FOR PENSION 
BENEFITS, AUGUST 31 $3,932,302 3,310,083 

-

See notes to financial statements --------------------------
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
_________________ NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The significant accounting policies applied by the CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI (the City) in the 
preparation of the accompanying general purpose financial statements are summarized below: 

1. Reporting Entity 

The general purpose financial statements of the City include the financial activities of the 
City and any component units. The criteria used in determining the scope of the reporting 
entity are based on the provisions of GASB Statement No. 14. The City is the primary 
government unit. Component units are those entities which are financially accountable to 
the primary government, either because the City appoints a voting majority of the compo­
nent unit's Board or because the component unit will provide a financial benefit or impose 
a financial burden on the City. It was determined that there are no other component units 
to be included in the City' s reporting entity. 

2. Fund Accounting 

The accounts of the City are organized on the basis of funds and account groups, each of 
which is considered a separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund are ac­
counted for with a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabili­
ties, fund equity, revenues and expenditures or expenses. Government resources are allo­
cated to and accounted for in individual funds based upon the purposes for which they are 
to be spent and the means by which spending activities are controlled. The various funds 
are grouped in the general purpose financial statements as follows: 

GOVERNMENTAL FUND 

General Fund -- The General Fund is the general operating fund of the City. It is used to 
account for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another 
fund . 

PROPRIETARY FUND 

Enterprise Fund -- The Enterprise Fund is used to account for operations that are fi­
nanced and operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises--where the intent 
of the governing body is that the costs of providing goods or services to the general public 
on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges; or where 
the governing body has decided that periodic determination of revenues earned, expenses 
incurred and/or net income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, manage­
ment control, accountability or other purposes. The City' s Enterprise Fund is the Sewer 
Fund. 

Page 9 



CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ----------------------

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

2. Fund Accounting (Continued) 

FIDUCIARY FUND 

Trust Fund -- The Trust Fund is used to account for assets held by the City in a trustee 
capacity for individuals, private organizations, other governments and/or other funds. The 
Pension Trust Fund is accounted for in essentially the same manner as proprietary funds. 

ACCOUNT GROUPS 

General Fixed Assets -- The general fixed assets used in the City's operations are to be 
accounted for in the General Fixed Assets Account Group rather than in the governmental 
funds. 

General Long-Term Debt -- Long-term liabilities expected to be financed from govern­
mental funds are accounted for in the General Long-Term Debt Account Group. 

3. Basis of Accounting 

Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures or expenses are recognized 
in the accounts and reported in the general purpose financial statements. Basis of ac­
counting relates to the timing of the measurements made, regardless of the measurement 
focus applied. 

The governmental fund types are accounted for on the current financial resources meas­
urement focus using the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under the modified accrual 
basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when they become both measurable and 
available. "Measurable" means the amount of the transaction can be determined and 
"available" means collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to be 
used to pay liabilities of the current period.· Significant revenues which are considered 
susceptible to accrual include sales taxes, utility gross receipts taxes and certain intergov­
ernmental revenues. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, 
except for interest on obligations in the General Long-Term Debt Account Group which is 

• recorded in the governmental fund types when paid. Licenses and permits, fines and court 
costs, special assessments, charges for services and miscellaneous revenues are not sus­
ceptible to accrual because generally they are not measurable until received in cash. 

All proprietary and pension trust funds are accounted for on the flow of economic re­
sources measurement focus using the accrual basis of accounting. Their revenues are rec­
ognized when they are earned and their expenses are recognized when they are incurred. 

.. 

• 

... 

-
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
_________________ NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

3. Basis of Accounting (Continued) 

As permitted by U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, the City has elected to ap­
ply only applicable F ASB Statements and Interpretations issued before November 30, 
1989 in its accounting and reporting practices for its proprietary operations. 

4. Budgets and Budgetary Accounting 

The City follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the gen­
eral purpose financial statements: 

a. On or before July 8, all departments submit requests for appropriations to the City's 
budget committee so that a budget may be prepared. 

b. During August, the operating budget is presented to the City Council for review. 
The operating budget includes proposed expenditures for the General and Enterprise 
Funds and the means of financing them. 

c. Public hearing meetings are held to obtain taxpayer comments. 
d. Prior to September 1, the budget is adopted by the City Council. 
e. Budgets are adopted on a basis generally consistent with U .S. generally accepted 

accounting principles. Expenditures modified for some year-end accruals may not 
legally exceed budgeted appropriations at the department level. 

f. Current year budget includes amendments. Budget amendments at the department 
level must be approved by the City Council. Management may authorize transfers 
of appropriations within a department. 

g. Appropriations lapse at year-end. 

5. Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments 

For cash flow statement purposes, the City considers all highly liquid debt instruments 
purchased with a maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. State statutes 
authorize the City to invest in obligations of the U.S. Treasury, federal agencies, commer­
cial paper, corporate bonds and repurchase agreements. The Pension Trust Fund is also 
authorized to invest in corporate common or preferred stocks, bonds and mortgages, real 
or personal property and other evidence of indebtedness or ownership, but excluding any 
debt of the City itself and individual insurance policies. Investments are stated at fair 
value, except for the Pension Trust Fund investment in deposit administration contracts 
which are reported at contract value. 

6. Prepaid Expenses 

Payments made to vendors for services that will benefit periods beyond the fiscal year-end 
are recorded as prepaid items. Prepaid items are equally offset by a fund balance reserve 
which indicates that they do not constitute "available spendable resources" even though 
they are a component of net current assets. 

I 
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ----------------------

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

7. Fixed Assets 

General fixed assets acquired for general governmental purposes are recorded as expen­
ditures in the governmental funds. Assets are valued at original or estimated original cost. 

... 

Contributed fixed assets are stated at estimated fair market value at the date of contribu- "'" 
tion. 

Fixed assets consisting of certain improvements other than buildings, including roads, 
bridges, curbs and gutters, streets, sidewalks and drainage systems, have not been capital­
ized. Such assets normally are immovable and of value only to the City. Therefore, the 
purpose of stewardship for capital expenditures is satisfied without recording these assets. 

No depreciation has been provided on general fixed assets. Assets acquired under lease/ 
purchase agreements are recorded at the inception of the agreement. 

Property, plant and equipment owned by the Enterprise Fund are stated at cost or, in the 
case of contributed fixed assets, at the estimated fair market value at the date of contribu­
tion. Depreciation has been provided over the estimated useful lives using the straight-line 
method. The estimated useful lives are as follows : 

Asset 

Machinery and equipment 
Buildings and improvements 
Sewer lines 

Depreciation expense for the year ended August 31 , 2001 was $444,068. 

8. Encumbrances 

Years 

8 
10- 30 

50 

Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts and other commitments 
for the expenditure of monies are recorded in order to reserve that portion of the applica­
ble appropriation, is employed as an extension of formal budgetary integration in the gov­
ernmental fund type. Encumbrances outstanding at year-end are reported as reservations 
of fund balances and do not constitute expenditures or liabilities because the commitments 
will be honored during the subsequent year. 

9. Due To/From Other Funds 

During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between individual funds 
for goods provided or services rendered. These receivables and payables are classified as 
"due from other funds" or "due to other funds" on the balance sheet. 
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
__________________ NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

10. Compensated Absences 

Vested or accumulated vacation and sick leave that is expected to be liquidated with ex­
pendable available financial resources is reported as an expenditure and a fund liability of 
the governmental fund that will pay it. Vested or accumulated vacation and sick leave of 
the proprietary fund are recorded as an expense and liability of that fund as the benefits 
accrued to employees. 

11. Fund Equity 

Contributed capital is recorded in the proprietary fund that has received capital grants or 
contributions from developers, customers or other funds. Reserves represent those por­
tions of fund equity not available for appropriation or legally segregated for a specific fu­
ture use. Designated fund balances represent tentative plans for future use of financial re­
sources. 

12. Sewer Connection Fees 

Sewer connection fees are accounted for as revenues only to the extent the fees equal the 
cost of physical connection to the system. Amounts that substantially exceed the cost to 
connect are accounted for as additions to contributed capital. 

13. Bond Discounts 

Bond discounts for the proprietary fund type are deferred and amortized over the term of 
the bonds. Bond discounts are presented as a reduction of the face amount of bonds pay­
able. 

Amortization expenses for the year ended August 31 , 2001 was $6,065 . 

14. Interfund Transactions 

Transfers of resources from a fund receiving revenue to the fund through which the re­
sources are to be expended are recorded as operating transfers. Such transfers are re­
ported as other financing sources (uses) in the governmental fund type and operating 
transfers in the proprietary fund type. 

Nonrecurring or nonroutine transfers of equity between funds are recorded as equity 
transfers and, accordingly, are reported as additions or deductions from fund balances of 
governmental fund type and additions or deductions of contributed capital or retained 
earnings, as appropriate, of the proprietary fund type. 
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ----------------------

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

15. Restricted Assets 

Certain funds generated by the sewer system are classified as restricted assets on the bal­
ance sheet because their use is limited by the sewer system revenue bond ordinances. The 

.. 

"bond account" is used only for the payment of principal and interest on the revenue .. 
bonds. The "depreciation and replacement account" is to be expended only for repairs or 
replacements to the sewer system. The "bond reserve account" is to be used only to pay 
bonds at maturity or interest as it accrues when and to the extent other funds are not 
available for this purpose. 

Certain General Fund monies are classified as restricted assets on the balance sheet be­
cause their use is limited by covenants of the capital lease agreement. The "reserve ac­
count" is to be used solely for the purpose of making lease payments on the applicable due 
dates when and to the extent other funds are not available for this purpose. The "lease 
payment account" is used only for the payment of the principal and interest on the I.ease 
obligation. 

Certain capital improvement sales tax receivables are classified as restricted assets on the 
balance sheet because their use and availability is limited by the sales tax agreement with 
Jefferson County. The funds are to be used for capital improvements to publicly main­
tained roads and become available upon the City's request for reimbursement of expendi­
tures on approved projects. 

16. Total Columns on Combined Statements - Overview 

Total columns on the combined statements - overview are captioned "Memorandum Only" 
to indicate that they are presented only to facilitate financial analysis. Data in these col­
umns do not present financial position, results of operations or cash flows in conformity 
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Neither is such data comparable to a 
consolidation. Interfund eliminations have not been made in the aggregation of this data. 

17. Comparative Data 

Comparative data for the prior year have been presented in the accompanying general pur­
pose financial statements in order to provide an understanding of changes in the City' s fi­
nancial position and operations. However, complete comparative data (i .e., presentation 
of prior year totals by fund type in each of the statements) have not been presented since 
their inclusion would make the statements unduly complex and difficult to read. 
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ---------------------

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

18. Allowance for Doubtful Accounts 

The allowance for uncollectible receivables is as follows : 

General Fund 
Enterprise Fund 

19. Deposit Administration Contracts 

August 31 
2001 

$24,119 
27,863 

$51,982 

Deposit administration contracts are pooled funds maintained by Metropolitan Life Insur­
ance Company and are carried at current value. Current value consist of contributions 
made under the contract plus investment income, less funds used to pay benefits and ad­
ministrative expenses. 

20. Reclassifications 

Certain reclassifications have been made to the August 31, 2000 amounts in order to 
conform to the presentation of the August 31, 2001 general purpose financial statements. 

NOTE B - CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS 

1. Deposits 

The City's bank deposits are required by state law to be secured by the deposit of certain 
securities specified at RSMo 30.270 with the City or trustee institution. The value of the 
securities must amount to the total of the City's cash not insured by the Federal Deposit 
Insurance Corporation. As of August 31, 2001, the City's bank deposits were fully in­
sured or collateralized with securities held by the City or its agent in the City' s name. 

2. Investments 

The City's investments are categorized below to give an indication of the level of risk as­
sumed by the entity at year-end as: (1) insured or registered with securities held by the 
City or its agent in the City's name; (2) uninsured and unregistered for which the securities 
are held by the counterparty's trust department or agent in the City' s name; or (3) unin­
sured and unregistered for which the securities are held by the counterparty or by its trust 
department or agent, but not in the City's name. 
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
___________________ NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE B - CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 

2. Investments (Continued) 

U.S. Treasury securities 
Government agencies 
Repurchase agreements 

Guaranteed investment contracts 
Certificates of deposit 
Amount included in cash and cash 

equivalents on combined balance 
sheet 

Total Investments , 

NOTE C - FIXED ASSETS 

August 31, 2001 
Categories 

$ 479,775 
5,873,934 

$6 353,709 

2 -1.. 

738,000 
738 000 

Carrying Amount/ 
Fair Value 

479,775 
5,873,934 

738,000 
7,091,709 
1,065,700 

190,000 

(1,792,925) 

$6.554.484 

A summary of changes in general fixed assets is as follows: 

Land, buildings and improve-
ments 

Machinery and equipment 
Automotive equipment 
Furniture and fixtures 

For The Year Ended August 31, 2001 
Balance 

August 31 
2000 Additions Reductions 

$14,167,919 
1,533,673 
1,019,040 

192,721 

$16,913,353 

1,728,192 
110,568 
137,262 

10,031 

1,986 053 

133,890 

133,890 

Balance 
August 31 

2001 

15,896,111 
1,644,241 
1,022,412 

202,752 

18.765,516 
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
_________________ NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE D - LONG-TERM DEBT 

Long-term debt consisted of the following: 

General Long-Term Debt Account Group 

Capital lease $3 ,635,000 leasehold revenue bonds for Collins tract park 
acquisition, 1997, due in annual installments through September 2005, 
interest payable at 4 .1 % to 5%. 

Capital lease $1 ,260,000 certificates of participation for municipal 
building complex, refunded 2001, due in annual installments through April 15, 
2006, interest payable at 4.3%. 

August 31 
2001 

$2,335,000 

1,260,000 

$3,595,000 

A schedule of future minimum lease payments under the capital leases and the present value of the net 
minimum lease payments as of August 31 , 2001 is as follows: 

Collins Municipal 
For The Years Tract Building 

Ended August 31 Park Complex Total 

2002 $ 578,820 242,268 821,088 
2003 591 ,965 243,130 835,095 
2004 602,965 240,730 843,695 
2005 876,750 237,530 1,114,280 
2006 458,920 458,920 

Total Minimum Lease Payments 2,650,500 1,422,578 4,073,078 
Less - Amount representing interest 315,500 162,578 478,078 

Present Value Of Future Minimum Lease Payments $2 335,000 1260000 3,595,000 

A summary of changes in general long-term debt is as follows : 

For The Year Ended August 31, 2001 
Balance Balance 

August 31 August 31 
2000 Additions Reductions 2001 

Capital leases payable $4,089,828 1,260,000 1,754,828 3,595,000 
Pension contribution payable 91 644 53 677 37,967 

$4,181 472 1,260 000 1,808 505 3,632,961 
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
__________________ NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE D - LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued) 

A prior period adjustment in the amount of $622,921 was made to general long-term debt for correction 
in estimate of pension contribution payable. 

The City has defeased the 1986 certificates of participation by issuing the 2001 certificates of pai1icipa­
tion. As of August 31 , 2001, $1,170,000 are considered defeased. 

In 2001 the City issued $1,260,000 of certificates of participation to refund the 1986 certificates of par­
ticipation. The proceeds (after payment of underwriting fees and issuance costs) were used to purchase 
securities for deposit in an irrevocable trust with an escrow agent to provide for future debt service pay­
ments on the 1986 certificates of participation. As a result, the 1986 certificates of participation are con­
sidered to be defeased and the liability for this debt has been removed from the City's general purpose 
financial statements. 

The City has decreased its aggregated debt service payments by $256,578 which resulted in an economic 
gain from the difference between the present values of the old and new debt service payments of $91 ,667. 

Enterprise Funds 

$1 ,270,000 Sewerage System Revenue Bonds, Series 1992, under the terms 
of the refinancing agreement Series 2001B, due in annual installments through 
January 1, 2013, interest payable at 4.25% to 6.55%. 

$1,135,000 Sewerage System Revenue Bonds, Series 1993, due in annual 
installments through July 1, 2014, interest payable at 3.4% to 5.4%. 

$1,240,000 Sewerage System Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 1994, 
due in annual installments through December 1, 2004, interest payable 
at 3% to 5.3%. 

Less - Unamortized debt discount 

August 31 , 2001 

$ 898-,750 

840,775 

415,000 
2,154,525 

32,314 

$2,122,211 

The principal maturity of the bonds, excluding amounts maturing after August 31, 2001, which were re-
mitted prior to the current fiscal year-end, are as follows: 

For The Years Series Series Series 
Ended August 31 1992 1993 1994 Tot~ 

2002 $ 55,000 48,000 125,000 228,000 
2003 55,000 50,000 140,000 245,000 
2004 60,000 52,000 150,000 262,000 
2005 65,000 55,000 120,000 
2006 70,000 58,000 128,000 

2007 - 2014 593,750 577,775 1,1 71,525 
898,750 840,775 415,000 2,154,525 

Less - Unamortized discounts 14,859 14,376 3,079 32,314 

Net Revenue Bonds Outstanding $883,891 826,399 411,921 2,122,211 
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
__________________ NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE D - LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued) 

The revenue bonds dated June 1, 1992 maturing after January 1, 2002 may be called for redemption and 
payment prior to maturity in whole or in part on each June 1 and December 1 commencing June 1, 2002, 
at redemption prices set forth below (expressed as percentages of principal amount) plus accrued interest 
thereon to the date of redemption: 

Redemption Dates 

June 1, 2002 and December 1, 2002 
June 1, 2003 and December 1, 2003 
June 1, 2004 and thereafter 

Redemption 
Prices 

102% 
101 
100 

The revenue bonds dated August 1, 1993 maturing after January 1, 2003 may be called for redemption 
and payment prior to maturity in whole or in part on each June 1 and December 1 commencing June 1, 
2003, at redemption prices set forth below ( expressed as percentages of principal amount) plus accrued 
interest thereon to the date of redemption: 

Redemption Dates 

June 1, 2003 and December 1, 2003 
June 1, 2004 and December 1, 2004 
June 1, 2005 and thereafter 

Redemption 
Prices 

102% 
101 
100 

The revenue bonds dated March 1, 1994 maturing after September 1, 2001 may be called for redemption 
and payment prior to maturity in whole or in part on any interest payment date commencing September 1, 
1999, at a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount plus accrued interest thereon to the 
date of redemption. 

The bond ordinances require that the City establish rates and charges for its sewer services, such that the 
revenues derived from the sewage system are sufficient to provide for the payment of principal and inter­
est on the revenue bonds and for the operation and maintenance of the sewage system. 

Notes payable: 
SRF - 1992, no interest 
SRF - 1993, no interest 

August 31 
2001 

$ 470,000 
595,700 

$1.065.700 

In conjunction with the bonds dated June 1, 1992, a reserve account has been established with a no­
interest loan funded with federal capitalization grants and matching funds from the State of Missouri . 
When fully funded, this loan (reserve account) will be funded in an amount equal to 50% of the out­
standing principal amount of such bonds. The reserve account is held in trust. As the principal amount 
of such bonds is repaid, the amounts held in the reserve account will be reduced such that the reserve ac­
count will equal 50% of the remaining principal balance of such bonds. 
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
__________________ NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTED - LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued) 

In conjunction with the bonds dated August 1, 1993, a reserve account has been established with a no­
interest loan funded with federal capitalization grants and matching funds from the State of Missouri. 
When fully funded, this loan (reserve account) will be funded in an amount equal to 70% of the out­
standing principal amount of such bonds. The reserve account is held in trust. As the principal amount 
of such bonds is repaid, the amounts held in the reserve account will be reduced such that the reserve ac­
count will equal70% of the remaining principal balance of such bonds. 

The City is in compliance with significant requirements regarding deposits and debt service payments. 

NOTE E - EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS AND PLANS 

The City maintains a single-employer, defined benefit pension plan (City of Arnold, Missouri Police Pen­
sion Plan) which covers all members of the organized police force and participates in the state-wide Mis­
souri Local Government Retirement System, an agent multiple-employer, defined benefit pension plan 
which covers all of the City' s full-time employees except for members of the police force. 

1. City of Arnold, Missouri Police Pension Plan 

Plan Description and Provisions 

The Plan is a single-employer, defined benefit pension plan that covers all of the City's 
full-time police employees. The Plan was created and is governed by City ordinance. The 
payroll for employees covered by the Plan for the year ended August 31 , 2000, which is 
the date of the latest actuarial valuation available, was $1 ,596,144 and the City's total pay­
roll was $4,108,800. 

The Plan does not issue a separate stand-alone financial report. The financial information 
is included as a Trust Fund in the City' s general purpose financial statements. Information 
about the Plan is provided in a summary plan description. 

Membership in the Plan is comprised of the following: 

Group 

Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 
Vested terminated employees and active employees 

August 31 
2000 

49 

Employees attaining the age of 55 who have completed five or more years of service are 
entitled to benefits based upon average earnings and years of service. The Plan also pro­
vides early retirement, death and disability. 

City ordinance requires each member to contribute 8½% of gross salary. The ordinance 
requires the City to contribute the actuarially computed amounts, which together with em­
ployee contributions and investment income, will cover the costs of the Plan. 
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
__________________ NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE E - EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS AND PLANS (Continued) 

1. City of Arnold, Missouri Police Pension Plan (Continued) 

Funding Status and Progress 

Pension Plan 
Valuation For The Actuarial 

Actuarial Years Value Of Actuarial Accrued 
Ended August 31 Assets Liability (AAL) 

2000 $3,310,083 $3 ,895,918 
1999 2,525,265 3,239,830 
1998 2,830,169 3,679,937 
1997 2,871 ,681 3,702,791 
1996 2,739,327 3,608,958 
1995 2,913 ,402 3,588,335 

Pension Plan 

Valuation For The 
Actuarial Years Funded Covered 

Ended August 31 Ratio Payroll 

2000 85 .0% $1,596,144 
1999 77.9 1,367,738 
1998 76.9 1,436,227 
1997 77.6 1,389,449 
1996 75 .9 1,272,593 
1995 81.2 1,343,422 

Schedule Of Employer Contributions 
Annual 

For The Years Required Actual 
Ended August 31 Contribution Contribution 

2000 $239,086 $299,407 
1999 279,684 265,166 
1998 262,268 198,073 
1997 236,162 222,077 

Unfunded 
AAL 

(UAAL) 

$585,835 
714,565 
849,768 
831,110 
869,631 
674,933 

UAALAsA 
Percentage 
Of Covered 

PayrolJ 

36.7% 
52.2 
59.2 
59.8 
68.3 
50.2 

Percentage 
Contributed 

125.2% 
94.8 
75.5 
94.0 

The information presented in the required supplementary schedule was determined as part 
of the actuarial valuation at the date indicated. Additional information as of the latest ac­
tuarial valuation follows: 
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ---------------------

NOTE E - EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS AND PLANS (Continued) 

1. City of Arnold, Missouri Police Pension Plan (Continued) 

Actuarial cost method 
Amortization method 
Amortization period 
Asset valuation method 
Actuarial assumptions: 

Investment rate of return 
Projected salary increases 
Inflation rate 

Annual Pension Cost 

Frozen entry age 
Using assumed rate of 7.25% over 30 years 

Closed 
At contract value and market value 

7.25% 
4.5% 
NIA 

Current year annual pension costs for the Plan are shown in the trend information. Annual 
required contributions were not made by the Plan. There is a net pension obligation for 
the Plan. 

Trend Information 

The historical trend information about the Plan is presented herewith to help users assess 
the Plan's funding status on a going-concern basis, assess progress made in accumulating 
assets to pay benefits when due and make comparison with other Public Employee Re­
tirement Systems (PERS). The information provided is the latest information available. 

Pension Plan 
Valuation For The Annual 

Actuarial Years Pension Percentage Net Pension 
Ended August 31 Cost Contributed Obligation 

2000 $239,086 125.2% $37,967 
1999 279,684 94.8 91,644 
1998 262,268 75 .5 72,080 
1997 236,162 94.0 7,335 

Pension Plan 
Net Pension 
Obligation Interest On Adjustment 

Valuation For The (Asset) Net Pension To Annual 
Actuarial Years Beginning Calculated Obligation Required 
Ended August 31 Of Year Contribution (Asset) Contribution 

2000 $91,644 $239,086 $6,644 $ -
1999 72,080 279,684 5,046 
1998 7,335 262,268 550 
1997 (6,308) 236,162 (442) 
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ---------------------

NOTE E - EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS AND PLANS (Continued) 

1. City of Arnold, Missouri Police Pension Plan (Continued) 

Valuation For The 
Actuarial Years 

Ended August 31 

2000 
1999 
1998 
1997 

Pension Plan 

Annual 
Required 

Contribution 

$239,086 
279,684 
262,268 
236,162 

Actual 
Contribution 

$299,407 
265,166 
198,073 
222,077 

Net Pension 
Obligation 

(Asset) 
End Of Year 

$37,967 
91,644 
72,080 

7,335 

2. Missouri Local Government Employees Retirement System (LAGERS) 

Plan Description 

The City participates in LAGERS, an agent multiple-employer public employee retirement 
system that acts as a common investment and administrative agent for local government 
entities in Missouri . • LAGERS is a defined benefit pension plan which provides retirement, 
disability and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. LAGERS was created and 
is governed by statute, Section RSMo 70.600 - 70.755 . As such, it is the system's re­
sponsibility to administer the law in accordance with the expressed intent of the General 
Assembly. The plan is qualified under the Internal Revenue Code Section 401(a) and it is 
tax exempt. 

LAGERS issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and 
required supplementary information. That report may be obtained by writing to LAGERS, 
P .O. Box 1665, Jefferson City, MO 65102 or by calling 1-800-447-4334. 

Funding Policy 

The City's full-time employees do not contribute to the pension plan. The City is required 
by state statute to contribute at an actuarially determined rate~ the current rate is 14.3% 
(general) of annual covered payroll. The contribution requirements of plan members are 
determined by the governing body of the City. The contribution provisions of the City are 
established by state statute. 

Annual Pension Cost 

For 2001 , the City' s annual pension cost of $261 ,030 was equal to the required and actual 
contributions. The required contribution was determined as part of the February 28/29, 
1999 and/or 2000 annual actuarial valuation using the entry age actuarial cost method. 
The actuarial assumptions included (a) a rate of return on the investment of present and 
future assets of 7. 5% per year, compounded annually, (b) projected salary increases of 4% 
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
__________________ NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE E - EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS AND PLANS (Continued) 

2. Missouri Local Government Employees Retirement System (LAGERS) (Continued) 

per year, compounded annually, attributable to inflation; (c) additional projected salary 
increases ranging from 0% to 4.2% per year, depending on age attributable to senior­
ity/merit; ( d) pre-retirement mortality based on the 1983 Group Annuity Mortality table; 
and ( e) post-retirement mortality based on the 1971 Group Annuity Mortality table pro­
jected to 2000 set back 1 year for men and 7 years for women. The actuarial value of as­
sets was determined using techniques that smooth the effects of short-term volatility in the 
market value of investments over a five-year period. The unfunded actuarial accrued li­
ability is being amortized as a level percentage of projected payroll on a closed basis. The 
amortization period at February 28, 2001 was 23 years. 

Three-year trend information follows : 

For The Years 
Ended June 30 

2001 
2000 
1999 

Annual Pension 
Cost (APC) 

$261,030 
227,982 
227,263 

Schedule of funding progress follows : 

For The 
Valuation 

Years Ended 
February 28/29 

2001 
2000 
1999 

For The 
Valuation 

Years Ended 
February 28/29 

2001 
2000 
1999 

Actuarial 
Value 

Of Assets 

$3,254,438 
2,883,878 
2,432,669 

Funded 
Ratio 

84% 
76 
72 

Entry Age 
Actuarial 
Accrued 
Liability 

$3,869,440 
3,788,631 
3,401 ,492 

Annual 
Covered 
Payroll 

$1 ,836,757 
1,644,739 
1,699,612 

Percentage Of 
APC Contributed 

100% 
100 
100 

Unfunded 
Accrued 
Liability 

(UAL) 

$615,002 
904,753 
968,823 

UAL As A 
Percentage 
Of Covered 

Payroll 

33% 
55 
57 

Note: The above assets and actuarial accrued liability do not include the assets and pres­
ent value of benefits associated with the Benefit Reserve Fund and the Casualty Reserve 
Fund. The actuarial assumptions were changed in conjunction with the February 28, 2001 
annual actuarial valuations. For a complete description of the actuarial assumptions used 
in the annual valuations, please contact the LAGERS office in Jefferson City. 
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ----------------------

NOTE F - INTERFUND ASSETS/LIABILITIES 

Individual interfund assets and liabilities are as follows : 

Due From/To Other Funds: 

Receivable Fund 

General Fund 
Police Pension Trust Fund 

NOTE G - PROPERTY TAXES 

Payable Fund 

Sewer Fund 
General Fund 

August 31 
2001 

$ 85,722 
38,349 

$124,071 

Property taxes are recorded as revenue in the fiscal year in which they are levied. Taxes levied and un­
collected are carried as an asset of the General Fund. An allowance has been established for the esti­
mated uncollectible property taxes. 

The City' s property tax calendar is as follows: 

a. Property is assessed by the County on January 1 each year. 
b. The tax levy ordinance is adopted and filed with the county clerk on or before Septem­

ber 1. 
c. Property taxes are due to be collected on or before December 31 . 
d. Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of January 1. 

NOTE H - INSURANCE 

The City is a member of the Missouri Intergovernmental Risk Management Association (MIRMA), a 
state-wide governmental self-insurance pool which provides property, liability and workers' compensa­
tion coverages to its participating members in a single comprehensive multiline package. The various 
lines of coverage are not available individually and the membership is limited to municipalities and mu­
nicipally owned utilities. The City's policy covers all real and personal property owned by the City ex­
cept sewer lines. The policy is for replacement cost and expires June 30, 2002. 

M1RMA is funded by annual member assessments calculated at a rate per $100 of annual payroll which 
applies to all lines of coverage on a composite basis. These funds are used to pay losses within specific 
risk retention limits shared equally by all members; purchase excess insurance which provides a transfer of 
catastrophic risk to private insurance carriers; purchase services such as claims administration, loss pre­
vention and data processing; and pay administrative expenses. Should actual insurance losses exceed 
MIRMA' s estimates, the City could be required to contribute additional funds. Management believes the 
risk of additional loss is minimal and any additional contributions that may be required would not materi­
ally impact the overall operations of the City. The City paid an assessment totaling $390,509 and 
$238,993 for MIRMA's fiscal years ended June 30, 2002 and 2001 , respectively. Settled claims resulting 
in these risks have not exceeded coverage in any of the past three years. 
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
__________________ NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE I - DEFICIT BALANCES 

The Enterprise Fund had a deficit retained earnings balance of $3,562, IO I. The fund deficit is offset by 
contributed capital. 

NOTE J - INTERFUND ADMINISTRATION FEE 

During the year, the Sewer System Fund paid $126,000 to the General Fund for administrative costs in­
curred by the General Fund relating to the operation of the Sewer System Fund. This fee is included in 
miscellaneous revenue in the General Fund. 

NOTE K - CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL 

The Enterprise Fund's contributed capital increased as follows: 

Source 

Contributed capital, August 31 , 2000 
Customers - sewer lines added during year 

Contributed capital, August 31 , 2001 

NOTE L - CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 

For The 
Year Ended 

August 31 
2001 

$17,628:,969 
13,247 

$17.642,216 

Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by grantor 
agencies, principally the federal government. Any disallowed claims, including amounts already col­
lected, may constitute a liability of the applicable funds. The amount, if any, of expenditures which may 
be disallowed by the granter cannot be determined at this time, although the City expects such amounts, 
if any, to be immaterial. 

The City is defendant in various lawsuits. Although the outcome of these lawsuits is not presently deter­
minable, in the opinion of the City's attorney, the resolution of these matters will not have material ad-

• verse effect on the financial condition of the City. 

The City has commitments of $238,400 for real estate purchases as of August 31 , 2001. 
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION ----------------

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION SECTION 
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI "" 
SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION - GENERAL :FUND -

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2001 .. 

Over 
(Under) 

Budget Actual Budget 

TAXES 
$ 712,000 i710,966 (1,034) 

6,078,340 ,982,2 6 (96,124) 
lities gr-00s receipts 1,570,000 67444 297,444 
el 530,000 35,29 5,295 

109,000 19,158 10,158 -
Total Taxes 8,999,340 9,215,079 215,739 

SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS 325,000 428,554 103,554 

LICENSES AND PERMITS 433,450 363,020 (70,430) 

FINES AND COURT COSTS 385,000 568,284 183,284 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL 1,684,810 686,857 (997,953) 

CHARGES FOR SERVICES 605,800 630,742 24,942 

INVESTMENT INCOME 310,000 456,150 146,150 

MISCELLANEOUS 
Sewer administration 126,000 126,000 
Other 163,400 132,483 (30,917) 

Total Miscellaneous 289,400 258,483 (30,917) 

Total Revenues $13,032,800 12,607,169 (425,63 I) 
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION - GENERAL FUND­

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
________________ ___ FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2001 

Over 
(Under) 

Budget Actual Budget 

GENERAL GOVERNMENT 
General and administrative $ 1,427,430 1,454,006 26,576 
Mayor and council 78,757 71 ,114 (7,643) 

81 ,019 89579 8,560 
mm1strator 148,1 04 129,580 (18,524) 

Treasurer 13,840 12,818 (1,022) 
Finance 154,093 129,050 (25,043) 
Collector of revenue 115,296 114,612 (684) 
:lUtomey 57,600 79 21,790 
Elections 6,000 5,070 (930) 
Planning commission 156,057 188,835 32,778 

Total General Government 2,238,196 2,274,054 35,858 

PUBLIC SAFETY 
P-olic 3,236,130 (3,559) 

efi el>oara 5,007 769 
• spatefiing 370,402 (6,465) 

Builaing commission 296,960 ·~ 2,042 
Total Public Safety 3,908,499 3,901,286 (7,213) 

PUBLIC WORKS 288,207 270,582 (17,625) 

HIGHWAYS AND STREETS 5,196,762 3,661,223 (1,535,539) 

PARKS AND RECREATION 578,914 521,361 (57,553) 

HEALTH AND SANITATION 
Health department I 02,496 88,097 (14,399) 
Rabies control 92,208 91,022 (1,186) 
Vector control 37,525 9,043 (28,482) 
Solid-waste 821,400 14,299 

Total Health And Sanitation 1,053,629 1, 
' 

(29,768) 

CAPITAL OUTLAY 767,830 706,149 (61,681) 

Total Expenditures $14,032,037 12,358,516 (1 ,673,521) 
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION - COMPARATIVE SCHEDULES 

OF GENERAL FIXED ASSETS BY SOURCE 
________________ ----, ________ AUGUST 31, 2001 AND 2000 

GENERAL FIXED ASSETS 
Land, buildings and improvements 
Machinery and equipment 
Automotive equipment 
Furniture and fixtures 

Total General Fixed Assets 

INVESTMENT IN GENERAL FIXED ASSETS BY SOURCE 
General Fund 

2001 

$15,896,111 
1,644,241 
1,022,412 

202,752 

$18,765,516 

$ 18,765,516 

2000 

14,167,919 
1,533,673 
1,019,040 

192,721 

16,913,353 

16,913,353 
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
SUPPLEMENT AL INFORMATION - SCHEDULE OF 

GENERAL FIXED ASSETS BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY 
AUGUST 31, 2001 

Land, 
Buildings Machinery Furniture 

And Improve- And Automotive And 
Function And Activity ments Equipment Equipment Fixtures Total 

General government: 
General and 

administrative $ 12,284,896 366,507 83,768 12,735,171 
Flood emergency 31,975 31,975 
Mayor and council 7,571 7,571 
Municipal court 3,603 3,603 
Administrator 12,386 2,834 15,220 
Finance 3,852 27,560 31,412 
Collector of revenue 18,833 18,833 
Attorney 2,865 2,865 
Planning commission 2,587 2,587 

Total General 
Government 12,316,871 370,359 12,386 149,621 12,849,237 

Public safety: 
Police 434,562 381,550 34,280 850,392 
Police board 176 176 
Dispatching 209,291 1,288 210,579 
Building commission 9,991 41,432 6,663 58,086 

Total Public Safety 653,844 422,982 42,407 1,119,233 

Public works 63,165 53,929 6,874 123,968 

Highways and streets 474,393 377,851 974 853,218 

Parks and recreation 3,579,240 69,653 108,660 1,148 3,758,701 

Health and sanitation: 
Health department 715 12,494 1,728 14,937 
Rabies control 4,184 21,550 25,734 
Vector control 7,928 12,560 20,488 

Total Health And 
Sanitation 12,827 46,604 1,728 61,159 

Total General 
Fixed Assets $15,896,111 1,644,241 1,022,412 202,752 18,765,516 
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION - SCHEDULE OF CHANGES 

IN GENERAL FIXED ASSETS BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2001 

Balance Balance 
August 31 August 31 .. 

Function And Activity 2000 Additions Deductions 2001 

General government: ... 
General and 

administrative $ I 0,996,948 1,738,223 12,735,171 
Flood emergency 31,975 31,975 
Mayor and council 7,571 7,571 
Municipal court 3,603 3,603 
Administrator 15,220 15,220 
Finance 31 ,412 31 ,412 
Collector of revenue 18,833 18,833 
Attorney 2,865 2,865 
Planning commission 2,587 2,587 

Total General 
Government I 1,1 I 1,014 1,738,223 12,849,237 

Public safety: 
Police 769,073 191 ,837 110,518 850,392 
Police board 176 176 
Dispatching 210,579 210,579 
Building commission 58,086 58,086 

Total Public Safety 1,037,914 191,837 I 10,518 1,119,233 

Public works 123,968 123,968 

Highways and streets 820,597 55,993 • 23,372 853,21 8 

Parks and recreation 3,758,701 3,758,701 

Health and sanitation: 
Health department 14,937 14,937 -Rabies control 25,734 25,734 
Vector control 20,488 20,488 

Total Health And 
Sanitation 61,159 61,159 

Total General 
Fixed Assets $ 16,913,353 1,986,053 133,890 18,765,51 6 

-

-
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
GENERAL GOVERNMENT EXPENDITURES BY FUNCTION 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

Highways Parks 
Fiscal General Public Public And And Health And Capital 
Year Government Safety Works Streets Recreation Sanitation Outlay Total 

1992 $ 1,561,120 2,311,619 269,059 781,554 322,224 518,080 326,633 6,090,289 
1993 1,414,608 2,428,800 295,634 1,002,916 353 ,331 545,650 664,119 6,705,058 
1994 2,990,274 2,652,954 301,829 1,360,285 431,731 571,777 232,990 8,541,840 
1995 6,005,996 2,860,774 306,690 946,103 421,626 624,088 490,526 11 ,655,803 
1996 2,549,763 2,870,859 288,260 1,070,740 438,769 636,818 365,840 8,221,049 
1997 1,368,316 2,847,853 300,416 4,110,097 414,899 645,971 454,377 10,141,929 
1998 1,620,657 3,032,830 292,242 2,985,299 455,725 751,861 4,336,295 13,474,909 
1999 2,049,441 3,176,224 356,308 1,233,767 495,895 764,165 2,421,938 10,497,738 
2000 2,129,939 3,472,504 262,624 987,096 492,673 808,802 506,273 8,659,911 
2001 2,274,054 3,901,286 270,582 3,661,223 521,361 1,023,861 706,149 12,358,5 16 
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
GENERALGOVERNMENTREVENUESBYSOURCE 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS ------------.--------------------------

Special Licenses Fines And Charges 
Fiscal Assess- And Court Intergovern- For Investment Miscel-
Year Taxes ments Permits Costs mental Services Income laneous Total 

1992 $4,637,459 210,240 222,763 192,010 427,276 499,956 135,320 187,160 6,512,184 
1993 5,140,436 178,106 237,365 246,501 592,749 514,676 89,453 225,081 7,224,367 
1994 5,714,338 208,318 288,693 . 252,962 1,707,256 537,164 122,505 322,927 9,154,163 
1995 5,701,074 237,361 267,284 335,820 4,648,881 566,582 146,063 252,311 12,155,376 
1996 5,377,496 282,521 284,441 341,807 1,318,109 578,221 202,293 319,770 8,704,658 
1997 6,086,870 357,203 297,466 379,466 2,340,801 580,148 283,246 276,510 10,601,710 
1998 7,366,716 281,251 407,674 365,737 904,389 568,363 329,660 229,687 10,453,477 
1999 6,786,607 462,128 437,320 362,251 646,139 506,498 338,289 244,761 9,783,993 
2000 7,230,362 521,950 404,733 403,169 243,162 503,346 466,262 196,974 9,969,958 
2001 9,215,079 428,554 363,020 568,284 686,857 630,742 456,150 258,483 12,607,169 
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
TAX REVENUES BY SOURCE 

------~-----------------LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

Public 
Utility 
Gross 

Fiscal Property Sales Receipts Motor Other 
Year Taxes Taxes Taxes Fuel Taxes Taxes Total 

1992 $ 457,042 2,573,869 1,208,230 319,322 78,996 4,637,459 
1993 477,296 2,969,250 1,244,833 361 ,306 87,751 5,140,436 
1994 491 ,016 3,380,911 1,345,534 402,270 94,607 5,714,338 
1995 488,468 3,397,419 1,269,851 443,743 101 ,593 5,701,074 
1996 522,735 2,890,690 1,425,912 465,774 72,385 5,377,496 
1997 567,527 3,459,780 1,435,129 523,123 I 01 ,311 6,086,870 
1998 606,021 4,648,901 1,474,412 529,326 108,056 7,366,716 
1999 622,119 4,008,135 1,516,599 527,420 112,334 6,786,607 
2000 670,891 4,373,059 1,513,163 558,156 115,093 7,230,362 
2001 710,966 5,982,216 1,867,444 535,295 119,158 9,215,079 
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

Outstanding 
Delinquent Total Delinquent 

Current Percent Tax (And Collections Outstanding Taxes As 
Fiscal Total Tax Collected Penalties) Total Tax As Percent Delinquent Percent 
Year Tax Levy Collections As Current Collections Collections Of Levy Taxes OfLe:2 

1992 $ 456,743 $ 416,681 91.2 % $ 40,415 $ 457,096 100.l % $ 17,069 3.74 % 
1993 474,443 331,877 70.0 146,464 478,341 100.8 16,024 3.38 
1994 490,378 442,916 90.3 50,660 493,576 100.7 15,220 3.10 
1995 486,110 471,523 97.0 20,944 492,467 101.3 11,395 2.34 
1996 525,276 467,869 89.l 52,355 520,224 99.0 17,318 3.29 
1997 565,117 526,297 93.1 40,723 567,020 100.3 17,826 3.15 
1998 603,604 527,829 87.4 82,700 610,529 101.1 16,443 2.72 
1999 622,429 586,577 94.2 35,659 622,236 100.0 18,762 3.01 
2000 670,891 517,177 77.1 155,207 672,384 100.2 13,849 2.06 
2001 708,787 661,782 93.4 46,057 707,839 99.9 16,978 2.40 
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
ASSESSED AND ESTIMATED ACTUAL VALUE OF TAXABLE PROPERTY 

_________________________ LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

Fiscal Assessed Estimated 
Year Value Actual Value 

1992 $ 97,179,362 $423,109,883 
1993 98,785,800 428,748,081 
1994 101,989,700 444,160,674 
1995 104,735,900 458,432,133 
1996 108,097,300 487,008,416 
1997 115,317,000 516,289,419 
1998 128,404,600 580,411,190 
1999 132,768,200 599,340,356 
2000 145,829,500 650,337,845 
2001 154,012,200 679,974,183 

Property has an assessed value to estimated actual value as follows : commercial real estate 32%, 
residential real estate 19%, agricultural real estate 12% and personal property 33-1/3%. 

The City does not collect tax on personal property and such data is, therefore, not included. 

Data for real property owned by exempt organizations is not included as it is not available. 

Ratio Of 
Total Assessed 
Value To Total 

Estimated 
Actual Value 

23 .0% 
23.0 
23.0 
22.8 
22.2 
22.3 
22.l 
22.2 
22.4 
22.6 
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
PROPERTY TAX RA TES - DIRECT AND ALL OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTS 

______________________________________ LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

1992 1993 1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 

City of Arnold 0.47 0.48 0.48 0.48 0.48 0.49 0.47. 0.47 0.46 0.45 

Overlapping governments: 
State of Missouri 0.03 0.03 0.03 0.03 0,03 0.03 0.03 0.03 0.03 0.03 
Jefferson County 0.52 0.54 0.53 0.45 0.48 0.49 0.74 0.49 0.48 0.50 
Consolidated School No. 6 of Jefferson County 2.93 2.98 2.98 3.03 3.78 3.78 3.61 3.61 3.58 3.50 
Rock Community Fire Protection District 0.66 0.67 0.67 0.70 0.73 0.73 0.70 0.80 0.85 0.92 
Rock Township Ambulance District 0.21 0.22 0.22 0.23 0.24 0.24 0.23 0.23 0.23 0.22 
The Junior College District of Jefferson County 0.21 0.21 0.21 0.22 0.23 0.23 0.23 0.23 0.23 0.23 
The Jefferson County Library District 0.20 0.20 0.20 0.20 0.20 0.20 0.19 0.19 0.19 0.19 

Total Overlapping Governments 4.76 4.85 4.84 4.86 5.69 5.70 5.73 5.58 5.59 5.59 

Total City And Overlapping Governments 5.23 5.33 5.32 5.34 6.17 6.19 6.20 6.05 6.05 6.04 

Note: Above per $100 assessed valuation 
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
PRINCIPAL TAXPAYERS 

------------------------------'AUGUST 31, 2001 

Taxpayer 

AmerenUE 
Midwest Missouri Gas 
Southwestern Bell Telephone 
Metal Container Corporation 
Valcour Development 
Suellentrop Family Partnership LP 
Target 
Schnucks 
Home Depot 
Glimcher Properties LTD Partners 

Utility 
Utility 
Utility 

Type Of Business 

Aluminum Can Manufacturer 
Shopping Center 
Industrial Center 
Retail Store 
Grocery Store 
Retail Store 
Shopping Center 

Tax Paid 

$ 1,068,935 
449,364 
349,144 

14,789 
13,928 
13,595 
12,447 
11,623 
10,731 
8,626 
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
SPECIAL ASSESSMENT BILLINGS AND COLLECTIONS 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS --'-....;__-----'-------~-----~--~------

Special 
Assessment Special 

Fiscal Billings (Due Assessment 
Year Within Fiscal Year) Collected (1) 

1992 $114,832 $210,240 
1993 119,070 178,106 
1994 117,229 208,318 
1995 161,956 237,361 
1996 198,111 282,521 
1997 188,568 357,203 
1998 167,176 281,251 
1999 253,376 462,128 
2000 328,768 521,950 
2001 213,968 428,554 

(1) Includes prepayments 
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
COMPUTATION OF LEGAL DEBT MARGIN 

______________________________ AUGUST -31, 2001 

Assessed value as of January 1, 200 l : 
Real property 
Personal property - city 

$154,012,200 
66,205,915 

$220,218,115 

Debt limit - l 0% of assessed value* 

Amount of debt applicable to debt limit: 

$ 22,021,812 

Total bonded debt 
Less - Exempt debt: 

Sewer revenue bonds 
Certificates of participation (Municipal Complex) 
Leasehold revenue bonds (Collins Tract) 

5,749,525 

(2,154,525) 
(1 ,260,000) 
(2,335,000) 

Net amount of debt applicable to debt limit 

Legal Debt Margin $ 22,021 ,812 

*Under Article Vl, Sections 26(b) and 26( c) of the Missouri Constitution, the City by vote of 2/3 of the 
qualified electors thereof, may incur general obligation bonded indebtedness for City purposes in an 
amount not to exceed l 0% of the assessed valuation of taxable intangible property within the City as 
asserted by the last completed assessment for state or county purposes. Under Section 26(d) of said 
Article Vl, the City may incur general obligation indebtedness not exceeding in the aggregate an additional 
I 0% of the aforesaid assessed valuation for the purposes of acquiring rights-of-way, constructing and 
improving sanitary or storm sewer systems; and under Section 26( e) of said Article Vl, additional general 
obligation indebtedness may be incurred for purchasing or constructing waterworks, electric or other light 
plants to be owned exclusively by the City, provided that the general obligation indebtedness of the City 
shall not exceed 20% of the assessed valuation. 
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
COMPUTATION OF DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING DEBT­

GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDED DEBT 
______________________________ AUGUST 31, 2001 

Name Of Governmental Unit 

The Junior Col1ege District of Jefferson County 
Consolidated School District No. 6 of 

Jefferson County 
City of Arnold 

Debt 
Outstanding 

$ 4,175,000 

14,900,000 

Percentage 
Applicable 
To City Of 

Arnold 

12.98 % 

49.89 
100.00 

Amount 
Applicable 
To City Of 

Arnold 

$ 541,915 

7,433,610 

$ 7,975,525 
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
REVENUE BOND COVERAGE - ENTERPRISE FUND 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

Net 
Revenue 
Available 

Fiscal Gross Operating For Debt Debt Service Requirements 

Year Revenues Exl!enses Service Principal Interest Total Coverage 

1992 $ 903,570 $ 613,022 $ 290,548 $ 95,000 $ 146,059 $ 241,059 1.21 
1993 978,024 623,508 354,516 128,333 211,273 339,606 1.04 
1994 1,082,448 653,002 429,446 595,000 291,358 886,358 0.48 
1995 1,113,170 697,938 415,232 186,167 191,326 377,493 1.10 
1996 1,154,205 822,532 331,673 178,250 182,707 360,957 0.92 
1997 1,215,473 941,631 273,842 179,250 176,432 355,682 0.77 
1998 1,161,063 742,330 418,733 209,250 169,116 378,366 1.11 
1999 1,213,806 662,102 551,704 187,500 159,917 347,417 1.59 
2000 1,262,057 814,523 447,534 150,750 147,581 298,331 1.50 
2001 1,307,513 780,749 526,764 235,975 143,245 379,220 1.39 
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
DEMOGRAPHIC STATISTICS 

________ ___________________ FIVE-YEAR INTERVALS "" 

Per 
Fiscal Capita 
Year Poeulation (1) Income (1) 

1980 19,141 $6,960 
1985 19,545 NIA 
1990 18,828 12,689 
1995 20,053 NIA 
2000 19,965 NIA 

Median 
Age (1) 

29.5 
NIA 
31.8 
NIA 
34.9 

Education 
Level In 
Years Of 
Formal 

Schooling (2) 

12.2 
NIA 
12.0 
NIA 
NIA 

(1) Source - Census Bureau, City of Arnold Community Development Department 

(2) Source - Census Bureau 

(3) Source - Consolidated School District No. 6 

(4) Source - Missouri Department of Labor 

-
Unem-

School ployment 
Enrollment (3) Rate !4) 

NIA 7.4% 
8,614 7.6 
9,252 9.0 
9,507 5.2 
11 ,0 I 9 3.1 
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
PROPERTY VALUE, CONSTRUCTION AND BANK DEPOSITS 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS --------------------------------------

Commercial Residential 
Property Value (1) Construction (2) Construction (2) 

Fiscal Number Number 
Year Commercial Residential Agriculture Total Of Units Value Of Units Value 

1992 $ 127,783,874 $ 295,056,842 $ 269,167 $423,109,883 8 $ 1,976,000 93 $ 4,767,052 
1993 133,410,625 295,055,789 281,667 428,748,081 7 1,509,600 118 6,492,665 
1994 137,025,937 304,074,737 3,060,000 444,160,674 4 775,000 211 14,398,494 
1995 137,276,563 318,124,737 3,030,833 458,432,133 7 1,320,011 145 10,856,574 
1996 121,302,188 362,797,895 2,908,333 487,008,416 5 949,839 148 20,957,246 
1997 134,044,375 379,334,211 2,910,833 516,289,419 7 2,786,390 129 10,702,387 
1998 140,222,813 438,724,210 1,464,167 580,411 ,190 17 16,756,035 124 11,283,815 
1999 146,035,313 452,004,210 1,300,833 599,340,356 12 10,108,385 94 8, 160,633 
2000 171,384,687 478,743,158 210,000 650,337,845 27 11,518,889 42 3,715,502 
2001 190,995,938 488,801,579 176,667 679,974,184 4 3,750,000 40 4,341,138 

(1) Estimated actual value from page 37 

(2) Source - City of Arnold Community Development Department 
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
MISCELLANEOUS STATISTICAL DATA 

______________________________ AUGUST 31 , 2001 

Date of incorporation 
Form of government 
Number of full-time employees (excluding police) 
Area in square miles 

City of Arnold facilities and services: 
Miles of streets 

Culture and recreation: 
Community centers 
Parks 
Park acreage 
Swimming pools 
Tennis courts 

Police protection: 
Number of stations 
Number of commissioned police officers 
Number of other police personnel 
Number of patrol units 
Number of law violations: 

Physical arrests 
Traffic violations 

Sewerage system: 
Miles of sanitary sewers 
Miles of storm sewers 
Number of treatment plants 
Number of pumping stations 
Daily average treatment in gallons 
Maximum daily capacity in gallons 

Facilities and services not included in the reporting entity: 
Education: 

Number of elementary schools 
Number of elementary school instructors 
Number of secondary schools 
Number of secondary school instructors 
Number of community colleges 

September 1972 
Mayor/Council/ Administrator 

59 
11.6 

76.6 

1 
5 

463 
1 
1 

1 
45 
12 
16 

4,983 
8,283 

95.3 
7.3 

1 
9 

1.4 million 
3.0 million 

9 
375 

4 
325 

1 

(Continued) 
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
MISCELLANEOUS STATISTICAL DATA (Continued) 

AUGUST 31, 2001 ------------------------------------

Fire protection: 
Number of stations 
Number of full-time fire personnel and officers 
Number of volunteer fire personnel 
Number of calls answered 
Number of inspections conducted 

Emergency ambulance services: 
Number of stations 
Number of emergency medical personnel and officers 
Number of ambulance units 
Number of calls answered 

Water system: 
Miles of water mains 
Number of service connections 
Number of fire hydrants 
Daily average consumption in gallons 
Maximum daily capacity in gallons 

4 
52 
18 

2,647 
4,455 

3 
46 

6 
5,064 

106.9 
6,908 

750 
2.20 million 
2.67 million 
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October 18, 2001 

Hochschild, Bloom & Company LLP 
Certified Public Accountants 
Consultants and Advisors 

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL 
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING BASED ON AN AUDIT OF 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE 
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

Honorable Mayor and City Council 
CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 

We have audited the general purpose financial statements of the CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI (the 
City) as of and for the year ended August 31, 2001, and have issued our report thereon dated October 18, 
2001. We conducted our audit in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States. 

Compliance 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City's general purpose financial statements 
are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts and grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on 
the determination of the general purpose financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on 
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express 
such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance that are required to be 
reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City' s internal control over financial reporting in 
order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opjnion on the general pur­
pose financial statements and not to provide assurance on the internal control over financial reporting. 
Our consideration of the internal control over financial reporting would not necessarily disclose all mat­
ters in the internal control over financial reporting that might be material weaknesses. A material weak­
ness is a condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components 
does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements in amounts that would be material in 

D 16100 Chesterfield Parkway West, Suite 125, Chesterfield, Missouri 63017-4829, 636-532-9525, Fax 636-532-9055 
D 1000 Washington Square, P.O. Box 1457, Washington, Missouri 63090-8457, 636-239-4785, Fax 636-239-5448 
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relation to the general purpose financial statements being audited may occur and not be detected within a 
timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. We noted no 
matters involving the internal control over financial reporting and its operation that we consider to be 
material weaknesses. 

However, we noted other matters involving the internal control over financial reporting which we have 
reported to the management of the City in a separate letter dated October 18, 2001 . 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management and all applicable regulatory 
agencies and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 
However, this report is a matter of public record and its distribution is not limited. 

tf IOC wJ.l L?. I"""'.,? L.:ct- LL. f 
CERTIFIED PUBLic ACCOUNTANTS 
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October 18, 2001 

Hochschild, Bloom & Company LLP 
Certified Public Accountants 
Consultants and Advisors 

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS 
APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND 
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH 0MB CffiCULAR A-133 

Honorable Mayor and City Council 
CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 

Compliance 

We have audited the compliance of the CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI (the City) with the types of 
compliance requirements described in the U.S . Office of Management and Budget (0MB) Circular A-
133 Compliance Supplement that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended 
August 31 , 2001. The City's major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditors' results 
section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the require-: 
ments of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to each of its major federal programs is the 
responsibility of the City's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the City's compli­
ance based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards; 
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States; and 0MB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Govern­
ments and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and 0MB Circular A-133 require that we plan 
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of 
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal 
program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the City's compliance 
with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered_ necessary in the circum­
stances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not pro­
vide a legal determination on the City' s compliance with those requirements. 

In our opinion, the City complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to above that 
are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended August 31, 2001 . 

D 16100 Chesterfield Parkway West, Suite 125, Chesterfield, Missouri 63017-4829, 636-532-9525, Fax 636-532-9055 
D 1000 Washington Square, P.O. Box 1457, Washington, Missouri 63090-8457, 636-239-4785, Fax 636-239-5448 
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Internal Control Over Compliance 

The management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over 
compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to federal programs. 
In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City' s internal control over compliance with re­
quirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program in order to determine 
our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report 

.. 

on internal control over compliance in accordance with O:MB Circular A-133 . .. 

Our consideration of the internal control over compliance would not necessarily disclose all matters in the 
internal control that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a condition in which the de- • 
sign or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not reduce to a relatively low 
level the risk that noncompliance with applicable requirements oflaws, regulations, contracts and grants 
that would be material in relation to a major federal program being audited may occur and not be de- • 
tected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. 
We noted no matters involving the internal control over compliance and its operation that we consider to 
be material weaknesses. 

Schedule of Expenditure of Federal Awards 

We have audited the general purpose financial statements of the City as of and for the year ended 
August 31 , 2001 , and have issued our report thereon dated October 18, 2001 . Our audit was made for 
the purpose of forming an opinion on the general purpose financial statements of the City taken as a 
whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of addi­
tional analysis as required by 0MB Circular A-133 and is not a required part of the general purpose fi­
nancial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit 
of the general purpose financial statements and in our opinion is fairly stated, in all material respects, in 
relation to the general purpose financial statements taken as a whole. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management and federal awarding agencies 
and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these 
specified parties. However, this report is a matter of public record and its distribution is not limited. 

tloc.w.J.J , {S{ .,,.__ ,I- G,--<c:f LL- f 

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

Page 51 

-



CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AW ARDS 

_________________ FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2001 

Federal Grantor/Pass-Through 
Grantor/Program Title 

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency: 
Missouri Department of Natural Resources 

State Revolving Fund 

U.S. Department of Transportation: 
Missouri Department of Transportation 

Highway Planning and Construction 
Highway Planning and Construction 
Highway Planning and Construction 
Highway Planning and Construction 
Highway Planning and Construction 

Missouri Division of Highway Safety 
Highway Safety 
Highway Safety 

U.S. Department of Justice: 
Community Oriented Policing Services 
Community Oriented Policing Services 

NOTES: 

1. General 

Federal 
CFDA 

Number 

66.458 

20.205 
20.205 
20.205 
20.205 
20.205 

20.600 
20.600 

16.710 
16.592 

Pass-Through 
Number 

STP-5474(603) 
STP-5474(605) 
STP-5475(604) 
STP-5474(604) 

CMAQ-5456( 607) 

01-PT-02-04 
00-PT-02-17 

95-CFWX1072 
2000-LB-VX-1252 

Expenditures 

$211,278 

28,607 
27,220 
40,537 
11,652 
10,268 

431 
1,382 

120,097 

82,179 
27,688 

109,867 

$441,242 

The schedule of federal awards (schedule) presents the activity of all federal financial assistance pro­
grams of the City. The City' s reporting entity is defined in Note A to the City' s general purpose fi­
nancial statements. Federal financial assistance received directly from federal agencies, as well as 
passed through other government agencies, is included on the schedule. 

2. Basis of Accounting 

The schedule is presented using the modified accrual basis of accounting, which is described in Note 
A of the City' s general purpose financial statements. 
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI • 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS AND 

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS 
___________________________ AUGUST 31, 2001 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

I. Summary of the auditors' results: 

A. The type of report issued on the general purpose financial statements of the auditee: Unqualified 
op1ruon. 

B. Reportable conditions in internal control were disclosed by the audit of the general purpose fi­
nancial statements, however, none were material weaknesses. 

C. The audit did not disclose any noncompliance which is material to the general purpose financial 
statements of the auditee. 

D. No reportable conditions in internal control over major programs were disclosed by the audit. 

E. • The type of report the auditors issued on compliance for major programs: Unqualified opinion. 

F. The audit disclosed no audit findings which the auditors are required to report under §.51 0(a). 

G. l9entification of major programs: State Revolving Fund. 

H. The dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs, as described in 
§ .520(b): $300,000. 

I. The auditee does qualify as a low-risk auditee under § .530. 

II. Findings relating to the general purpose financial statements which are required to be reported in . 
accordance with GAGAS: None .,.. 

III. Findings and questioned costs for federal awards which shall include audit findings as defined in 
§ .510(a): None 

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS 

None 
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